
From: Nichols, John B Civ USAF AFMC 95 ABW/CE
To: Judkins, James E Civ USAF AFMC 95 ABW/CE
Cc: Diorio, Joseph A Civ USAF AFMC 95 ABW/CEC
Subject: FW: Water Reports
Date: Monday, April 20, 2009 3:59:24 PM

Sir,
For us to go over tomorrow when you return
 
From: Diorio, Joseph A Civ USAF AFMC 95 ABW/CEC 
Sent: Monday, April 20, 2009 3:58 PM
To: Nichols, John B Civ USAF AFMC 95 ABW/CE
Cc: Morris, Richard A Civ USAF AFMC 95 ABW/CETW; Frost, Amy K Civ USAF AFMC 95 ABW/CEC
Subject: RE: Water Reports
 
John,
 

1.  Mr. J asked me last Friday to estimate water usage and compare the estimate to the water production data for wells and AVEK.
 

2.   The following table shows estimated water demand for Main Base:
 
Table 1 – Estimated Water Demand (Main Base)
 

    Month    
Item Units Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Annual Avg

Days Days 31 28 31 30 31 30 31 31 30 31 30 31 365 -
Irrigation, Common
Areas and Golf
Course Acre-feet 55 71 124 168 199 241 266 244 177 127 73 56 1800 150
Irrigation, MFH Acre-feet 24 31 54 73 86 105 116 106 77 55 32 24 784 65
Irrigation  79 102 178 242 285 345 381 351 255 182 105 80 2584 215
Irrigation ET (CIMIS
Station 197) inches/month 2.02 2.61 4.55 6.19 7.3 8.85 9.77 8.99 6.52 4.66 2.68 2.05 66.19 5.52
Design Population People 9600 9600 9600 9600 9600 9600 9600 9600 9600 9600 9600 9600 - -
Unit Domestic
Demand Gal/day/Person 150 150 150 150 150 150 150 150 150 150 150 150 - 150
Domestic Demand Gal/day 1,440,000 1,440,000 1,440,000 1,440,000 1,440,000 1,440,000 1,440,000 1,440,000 1,440,000 1,440,000 1,440,000 1,440,000 - 1,440,000
Domestic Demand Million Gallons 45 40 45 43 45 43 45 45 43 45 43 45 526 44
Domestic Demand Acre-feet 137 124 137 133 137 133 137 137 133 137 133 137 1613 134
Aircraft Washing Gal/day 24,000 24,000 24,000 24,000 24,000 24,000 24,000 24,000 24,000 24,000 24,000 24,000 - 24,000
Aircraft Washing Million Gallons 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 1
Aircraft Washing Acre-feet 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Evaporative Coolers Percent usage 0 0 10 20 40 70 70 70 40 10 5 0 - -
Evaporative Coolers Equivalent 24-hour Days 0 0 3 6 12 21 22 22 12 3 2 0 103 -

Evaporative Coolers
Equivalent Number (see
note) 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 - 10,000

Evaporative Coolers Gallons/day/Unit - - - - - - - - - - - - 19,000 -
Evaporative Coolers Million Gallons 0 0 6 11 23 39 40 40 22 6 3 0 190 16
Evaporative Coolers Acre-feet 0 0 18 34 71 119 123 123 68 18 9 0 583 49
Unavoidable Losses Gallons/day 91,400 91,400 91,400 91,400 91,400 91,400 91,400 91,400 91,400 91,400 91,400 91,400 - 91,400
Unavoidable Losses Million Gallons 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 33 2.78
Unavoidable Losses Acre-feet 9 8 9 8 9 8 9 9 8 9 8 9 102 8.53
Fire Hydrant Testing Acre-feet 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 12 1.00
                
Total Acre-feet 226 234 342 418 502 607 652 621 465 346 255 227 4,894 408
                

 
3.  The following table shows historical well and AVEK import data from the reports:

 
    Month    

Item Units Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Annual Avg
CY 03 -- Main Base Million Gallons - - - - - - - - - - - - 1545  
CY 03 -- Main Base Acre-feet - - - - - - - - - - - - 4741  
CY 04 -- Main Base Million Gallons - - - - - - - - - - - - unk  
CY 05 -- Main Base Million Gallons - - - - - - - - - - - - 1345  
CY 05 -- Main Base Acre-feet - - - - - - - - - - - - 4128  
CY 06 -- Main Base Million Gallons - - - - - - - - - - - - 1320  
CY 06 -- Main Base Acre-feet             4050  
CY 07 -- Main Base Million Gallons - - - - - - - - - - - - 1352  
CY 07 -- Main Base Acre-feet - - - - - - - - - - - - 4149  
CY 08 -- Main Base Million Gallons - - - - - - - - - - - - 1030  
CY 08 -- Main Base Acre-feet - - - - - - - - - - - - 3161  

 
 

4.  The data show annual water use for 2008 was approximately 1,700 acre-feet less than the estimate. Some of the difference is attributed to excluding recycled water from
the production data and applying more domestic water use. The current annual domestic water demand and wastewater flow is somewhere around 600,000 gallons per day or
close to 700 acre-feet. The remaining 1,000 acre-feet difference is presumably mostly from water conservation last year.

 
5.   AFRL uses less water and I did not include their data. Also, 2004 data was missing. I think Richard copied that report but did not find in the folder.
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Attachment 8 - AFP 42 Federal Reserved Right

Sites MG AF MG AF MG AF MG AF MG AF

Site 1
 - Domestic Well 3.00 9.21 9.00 27.62 9.90 30.38 10.90 33.45 12.00 36.83 Site 1 is currently in transition.  The current Lease Operator is moving operations
 - Municipal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00  to the former NASA facilities.  Current plan is to back-fill the South facilities with 
 - Fire Well 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 new programs…to be fully operational by 2018. 

Site 2
 - Domestic Well 2.50 7.67 2.75 8.44 4.00 12.28 6.00 18.41 6.60 20.25 Current operations are expected to end by 2023.  Another AFP 42 Lease Operator 
 - Municipal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 has interest in the Site.  The new program will fully occupy the site, with plans on
 - Fire Well 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 adding additional cooling requirement to the existing hangar by 2028. 

Site 3
 - Domestic Well 30.00 92.07 33.00 101.27 36.30 111.40 39.90 122.45 43.90 134.72 This Site is expected to remain fully active and occupied for the long-term.
 - Municipal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
 - Fire Well 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Site 4
 - Domestic Well 60.00 184.13 83.50 256.25 107.00 328.37 117.70 361.21 129.47 397.33 The Lease Operator for this Site has provided the AF with a master plan for new construction 
 - Municipal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 to support new programs.  These facilities will add ~1M SF to the Site.
 - Fire Well 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Projected is a ~500K SF increase in new facilities by 2018 and another ~500K SF of new facilities by 2023.

Site 5/6
 - Domestic Well 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
 - Municipal 38.50 118.15 42.35 129.97 46.59 142.98 51.25 157.28 56.36 172.96 Fire Water requirements are projected to increase 
 - Fire Well 21.00 64.45 25.75 79.02 30.50 93.60 33.55 102.96 36.91 113.27 as the new building SF increases on the North-end of the Plant.

Site 7
 - Domestic Well 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 An existing AFP 42 Lease Operator has provided the AF with a master plan
 - Municipal 2.00 6.14 20.00 61.38 22.00 67.52 24.20 74.27 26.60 81.63  to utilize this Site to support existing and new programs.  These programs will fully 
 - Fire Well 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 utilize existing facilities and provide cooling in all current hangars, by 2018.

Site 8
 - Domestic Well 2.00 6.14 2.20 6.75 2.42 7.43 2.66 8.16 2.93 8.99 The current warehouse-type functions performed in this facility 
 - Municipal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 are expected to remain for the long-term.
 - Fire Well 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
TOTAL 159 487.95 218.55 670.71 258.71 793.95 286.16 878.19 314.77 965.99

NOTE:

2001 - 2004 Average: 146.37 MG 449.19 AF

2011 Average: 173.66 MG 532.94 AF

2012 (as of 09/30/12): 150.50 MG 461.87 AF

Projected 2013: 159.00 MG 487.95 AF

Projected 2018: 218.55 MG 670.71 AF

Projected 2023: 258.71 MG 793.95 AF

Projected 2028: 286.16 MG 878.19 AF

Projected 2033: 314.77 MG 965.99 AF

Based on the past usage, a 10% increase was added per every 5-year period.

Assumptions:

With the full utilization of Site 1 and Site 7; and the addition of ~500K SF of new facilities at Site 4 and associated Fire Water.

With the addition of ~500K SF of new facilities at Site 4 and associated Fire Water.

2013 2018 (+5-years) 2023 (+10-years) 2028 (+15-years) 2033 (+20-years)



SUPERIOR COURT OF ARIZONA 
MARICOPA COUNTY 

 
08/23/2011 CLERK OF THE COURT 
 FORM V000 
  
HONORABLE EDDWARD BALLINGER, JR. L. NEVENHOVEN 
 Deputy 
  
W-1, W-2, W-3, W-4 
(Consolidated) 
 
Contested Case No. W1-11-605 
 

 

 
 FILED: September 7, 2011 
  
In re the General Adjudication   
of all Rights to Use Water in the  
Gila River System and Source  
  
In re Fort Huachuca  
  
In re Report of the Special Master and Motion 
for Adoption of Report filed April 4, 2008 
 

 

 
Order Granting the Special Master’s Motion for Adoption of the 

April 4, 2008 Report Regarding Fort Huachuca 
 

On April 4, 2008, the Special Master filed his report dealing with the question of 
whether federal reserved water rights exist for the Fort Huachuca military installation (the 
“Report”), which is situated in southeastern Arizona. 
 

As a preliminary matter, the Court notes that Salt River Project Agricultural 
Improvement and Power District and Salt River Valley Water Users’ Association filed a 
Motion to Strike the May 19, 2010, statement of facts and accompanying exhibits filed by 
ASARCO LLC.  After due consideration, 
 

IT IS ORDERED GRANTING the motion and striking the cited materials. 
 

On January 28, 2010, and July 15, 2010, the Court held oral argument on the 
Special Master’s request to approve the Report.  In the Report, the Special Master 
addressed four issues: 
 

1.  Whether, and to what extent, did the United States withdraw land from the 
public domain and reserve the property comprising Fort Huachuca for federal purposes? 
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2.  The purposes to be served by the reservations assuming land was withdrawn 
and reserved? 
 

3.  Did the United States intend to reserve unappropriated water to accomplish the 
purposes for which land was withdrawn and reserved?  
 

4.  If water rights were reserved what is/are the date(s) of priority of reserved 
water rights? 
 

The Report concludes that federal reserved water rights exist for the areas referred 
to in Executive Orders issued by President Chester A. Arthur during the 1880’s. The 
Special Master rejected the United States’ request that he go further and resolve two 
additional disputed issues.  The first was the federal government’s request that the 
Special Master find that its water rights extend to groundwater.  The Court agrees it 
cannot determine whether the federal government possesses valid groundwater claims 
related to its operation of the Fort Huachuca facility at this time. 
 

At the initial hearing, the Court focused much of its attention on the United 
States’ second request: that the Special Master (or this Court) undertakes to define in 
detail the scope of the federal government’s water rights beyond the Report’s generic 
acknowledgement of uses related to “military purposes.”  This question is a precursor to 
what may be the difficult task of quantifying water rights claims that are upheld. The 
Court continued oral argument to consider the parties’ positions and then determine, 
assuming water rights are found to exist, if an accurate delineation of the extent of these 
rights could be announced.  Consideration of whether a legally supportable resolution of 
this issue is now possible has delayed issuance of this order. 
 

The Court has reluctantly concluded that it is impossible to craft an unambiguous 
order that would provide meaningful guidance to the parties.  For example, the Court is 
convinced that the Fort Huachuca reservation for “military uses” is not static and includes 
water rights required to satisfy contemporary, direct, indirect and quasi-municipal needs 
that arise in conducting military and military-related functions important to local and 
national security.  But the current record and cited authorities do not permit the Court to 
craft a definition of “military purposes” that would provide practical guidance to the 
parties with respect to the myriad of activities (some of which were unknown at the time 
of the initial reservations) that are ongoing on land not surveyed at the time of withdrawal 
from public use.  For example, would a ruling that “military purposes” includes water 
required to satisfy the needs of those military and non-military personnel reasonably 
required to fulfill the current defense needs of the federal government be helpful?  What 
if crucial, non-military personnel can only be enticed to reside near the Fort Huachuca 
area if there are adequate recreational facilities such as a golf course?  After reviewing 
the authorities cited by the parties, as well as the current record, the Court declines to 
supplement the report with rulings relating to the scope of the reserved water rights 
upheld below.  The specific quantity of water dedicated to the rights acknowledged 
herein must await future proceedings. 
 



After considering the memoranda and arguments filed by the various claimants, 
the Court has determined that the relief requested in the Special Master’s motion should 
be granted, as modified by this order.  Accordingly, 
 

This Court approves and adopts the findings of fact and conclusions of law 
contained in the Report, except as modified as follows: 
 

Conclusion of Law No. 1.  This conclusion is comprised of a mixed finding of 
fact and law. There were no objections to the finding, and the conclusion is approved. 
 

Conclusion of Law No. 4.  The Court approves this conclusion, but does not adopt 
congressional acquiescence as the sole potential justification for the conclusion. 
 

Conclusion of Law No. 5.  This conclusion sets forth the Special Master’s 
determination that Executive Orders entered by President Chester A. Arthur on October 
29, 1881, and May 14, 1883, effectively withdrew land from the public domain.  Some 
parties challenged this result by pointing out that at the time the orders were issued the 
relevant real property had not been surveyed.  The Court agrees with the Special Master 
that this fact does not affect the validity of withdrawals when the federal government 
retains title to the withdrawn land.  This conclusion also supports the Court’s 
determination that now is not the time to attempt to quantify any federal reserved water 
right situated at Fort Huachuca. 
 

Conclusion of Law No. 9.  This conclusion is affirmed, but the Court 
acknowledges some may find the reasoning supporting this conclusion to be contrary to 
the reasoning supporting Conclusion of Law No. 4.  The Court finds significant that 
Conclusion of Law No. 4 involved a situation not applicable to consideration of 
Conclusion of Law No. 9, the affirmative assertion of the United States, as part of 
relevant transactions, of an intention to withdraw and reserve land for a federal purpose.   
This distinction is supported by Finding of Fact No. 36. 
 

Conclusion of Law No. 21.  The conclusion is affirmed, but the Court takes no 
position as to the Special Master’s analysis of the date of priority of water rights held by 
the United States as a result of reacquisition of Fort Huachuca. 
 

Conclusion of Law No. 23.  The holding of the conclusion, which is set forth in 
its first sentence, is affirmed. The remainder of the narrative is dicta. 
 

Based upon the foregoing, 
 

IT IS ORDERED: 
 

A. Approving and adopting, as modified above, the Special Master’s Report as 
an order of this Court; 

 



B. Affirming the Special Master’s disposition of the parties’ requests for 
summary relief to the extent consistent with this order; 

 
C. Directing the Arizona Department of Water Resources to implement the 

findings and conclusions adopted by this order in preparing future technical 
reports relating to Fort Huachuca; 

 
D. Directing the parties to submit to the Special Master, on or before Tuesday, 

November 1, 2011, issues for resolution in the next phase of this matter; and, 
 

E. Signing this minute entry as a formal written order of the Court. 
 
 

/s/ Eddward P. Ballinger, Jr.     
JUDICIAL OFFICER OF THE SUPERIOR COURT 

 
 

A copy of this order is mailed to all parties on the Court-approved mailing lists 
for the Gila River Adjudication, W-1, W-2, W-3, W-4 (Consolidated), and Contested 
Case No. W1-11-605, both dated July 25, 2010. 



2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2011 2012 (Nov)
6.06 4.59 6.99 41.42 182.11 47.80 0.38

Edwards AFB Estimated Groundwater Sent to Golf Course (acre-feet)
Attachment 10




